
 1

 
 

NORTH COAST RAILROAD AUTHORITY (NCRA) 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING 
November 1, 2007 

2:00 p.m. 
Conference Call – Various Locations 

 
Draft Minutes 

 
 
 
Public Call-In Location:  

 
NCRA Office~ 419 Talmage Road, Suite M, Ukiah, Ca  
 
Alternate Public Participation Locations – The following Board Members will have Conference 

Call Availability: 

 

 Chairman Hemphill:  47081 Pirates Drive, Gualala, Ca  

 Director Ziedrich: 359 Hudson Street, Healdsburg, Ca 
 Director Simonson:  419 Talmage Road, Suite M, Ukiah, Ca 

 Director Ollivier:  1970 Ollivier Drive, McKinleyille, Ca 

 Director MacDonald:  500 Davidson Street Novato 

 Director Meyers:  500 Davidson Street Novato 

 Director Woolley:  825 5
th
 Street, Eureka, Ca 

  
 
A. CALL TO ORDER  
 
 Chairman Hemphill called the meeting to order at 2:03 p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL  
 
 Directors present by teleconference:  Ollivier, Ziedrich, Woolley, Simonson, Mac Donald, 
 Meyers, and Chairman Hemphill 
 Directors absent:  Colfax, Kelley 
 Also present by teleconference:  Executive Director Mitch Stogner, Legal Counsel Christopher 
 Neary, and Recording Secretary Heather Lindsteadt 
 
C. AGENDA APPROVAL  
 
 Upon Motion by Director Simonson, seconded by Director Meyers and carried unanimously 
 by roll (7-0 Kelley, Colfax absent) the Agenda stood as presented. 
 
D. MATTERS FROM THE BOARD 
 
 1. Introduction of Newly Appointed Board Members 

 

 Chairman Hemphill introduced Bernard Meyers and Tom MacDonald as newly appointed 
 members to the NCRA Board.  



 2

 
  a.)  Mr. Tom MacDonald 
  
  Director MacDonald said that he is a resident of Novato.  He said he sits on the Citizens  
  Budget  Committee for the City of Novato and is also Chairman for the City of Novato  
  Pension Committee.    
 
  b.)  Mr. Bernie Meyers 
 
  Director Meyers said that he is a lawyer.  He said he served on the Novato Planning  
  Commission and was also a City of Novato Councilmember and former Mayor.  He said  
  that he retired in 2005. 
  
 

E. CONSENT CALENDER 
 
 1. Approval of Minutes – October 17, 2007 Operator Committee Meeting 

 

 No action taken.  Legal Counsel said that the Operator Committee should approve its own 
 minutes and added that the minutes were provided for information only. 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT  
  
 No public comment. 
 
 
G. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS 
 
 1.  Consideration and Possible Action Regarding Award of Contract to Mass    

   Electric Construction Company for  Railroad Grade Crossing Warning System  

   Repair and Replacement  Contract # 2. 

 

 Executive Director Stogner gave an overview of the Bids that were opened on October 5, 2007. 
 He said that the lowest responsive bid that was opened exceeded the amount budgeted for the 
 project by $1.2 million.  He added that on October 17 the Operator Committee gave staff 
 direction to rework the bid so that Notice to Proceed (NTP) is given for the crossings that can 
 be completed under the existing budget and also directed staff to issue a second Notice to Proceed 
 (NTP) for the remaining crossings that can be completed after NCRA receives an allocation from 
 the CTC in January.  Mr. Stogner added that the budget for the repair of 54 signal crossings is 
 $9.025 million.  He said the first signal contract  that covered 28 crossing signals for a total of 
 $5.8 million, and the low bid for the second signal project was $4.482 million.   
 
 Dave Anderson – NCRA Project Manager said that the Mass Electric bid was for a total of 27 at 
 grade crossing signals.  He said that between the time of the issuance of the RFP and the bid 
 opening, NCRA discovered that Caltrans is moving forward on the Golf Course Drive Crossing; 
 consequently, that particular crossing can be removed from the bid.  He said that HNTB 
 completed a thorough check of the Mass Electric bid for completeness and accuracy and has 
 recommended award of contract to Mass Electric.  Mr. Anderson said that upon direction from 
 the Operator Committee and the Operator, NCRA was instructed to eliminate the crossings 
 furthest North of the Project so that there would be an operable segment from Lombard North.  
 He said the 8 crossings, north to south that should be eliminated from the preliminary Notice to 



 3

 Proceed (NTP)  are Windsor River Road, Mitchell Lane, Aviation Blvd, Shiloh Road, Airport 
 Road, River Road, Fulton Road and San Miguel in Fulton.  He said that the eight signals  total 
 $1.45 million and if those 8 signals are subtracted along with the Golf Course Drive signal, 
 it brings the contract price to $4,482,504 with a limited NTP of $2,941,904.  He said that the NTP 
 would be given on the remaining 8 signals following allocation of funding by the CTC in 
 January. 
 
 Director Meyers asked if the cost for permits and signal testing decrease because there would be  
 fewer signals.  He also asked what would happen if the CTC decided not to allocate funds for the 
 second Notice to Proceed? 
 
 Mr. Anderson said that less would be expended from the Mass Electric budget until NCRA issues 
 the full  Notice to Proceed.  He also said that if the CTC decided not allocate funds in January the 
 total cost of testing and permits would be reduced, if 8 of the signals were not repaired due to lack 
 of funding.   

 
Director Meyers asked what the risk of injury to the public was for each crossing and whether 
that risk differed depending on the location of the crossing. 
 
Mr. Anderson said that the risk during the crossing signal repair will vary depending upon the 
extent of construction.  He said that the Public Utilities Commission (PUC) has visited each of 
the sites and made safety recommendations.   
 
Director Simonson said that some crossings are inherently more dangerous and that the level of 
traffic is a key factor in assessing safety concerns at each crossing. 
 
Director Meyers asked if the CTC allocation was dependent upon the number of crossings that 
were to be repaired.  Mr. Stogner said that the CTC did not take into account the number of 
crossings when making an allocation, except as it relates to the November 2006 application which 
calls for the repair of 54 signal crossings. 
 
Director Meyers asked if it was lawful and ethical to pick and choose items from each of the 
bidders and said that the HNTB memo says NCRA reserves the right to award any or all of the 
lump sum bid items.  Mr. Anderson said that NCRA has to accept one bid, and added that NCRA 
can choose either one of the bids. Once a bid is selected, he said,  NCRA has the option of 
eliminating one ore more of the crossings from that bid.  Director Meyers suggested removing 
Caulfield Lane from the bid because Petaluma may pay for part of the crossing and added that if 
Caulfield Lane was removed then Helix would be the low bidder.  Mr. Anderson said that NCRA 
needs to choose the lowest responsive bidder. He also said that NCRA needs to complete the 
crossings to the furthest point north, and that removing Caulfield lane would result in an 
inoperable segment.   
 
Director Meyers asked Legal Counsel Neary if NCRA could remove the Caulfield Lane crossing. 
He also said that if that particular crossing was removed from the bid, it would free up funds for 
the 8 crossings that are being proposed for removal, until CTC funding is made available. 
 
Legal Counsel Neary said the removal of Caulfield would probably not be allowed and could 
result in bid protests. 
 
Director Meyers also asked if the signals that are constructed will benefit SMART and if SMART 
is paying for any of the project.  Mr. Anderson said that SMART is reviewing the plans and that 



 4

the work that NCRA does will not impede any upgrades that SMART may need to complete.  He 
also said that NCRA’s repair of the signal crossings will be compatible with SMART’S use.  
Chairman Hemphill added that SMART will be forgiving the Haystack loan for NCRA’s in-kind 
contribution to the line. 
 
Director MacDonald said that Stone Tree Crossing was not part of Signal Package # 1, or Signal 
Package # 2 and asked what the status of that crossing was. 
 
Mr. Anderson said that Stone Tree Crossing is a private crossing that will be addressed under a 
separate crossing contract.  He said that NCRA has a meeting with SMART to discuss the funds 
that will be used for repair, and that NCRA is not paying for repair of that particular crossing. 
 
Director MacDonald asked if the CTC has been made aware of the bid overruns.  Mr. Stogner 
said that CalTrans has been updated and NCRA will meet with CTC to further discuss the issue.  
He also said that NCRA will go to the CTC to ask for a reallocation of existing funds to cover the 
overrun.    
 
Chairman Hemphill said that NCRA will issue a Limited Notice to Proceed for only the crossings 
that NCRA currently has funding for.  
 
Director MacDonald said that municipalities must have a balanced budget and asked Legal 
Counsel Neary if it was legal for NCRA to award a bid without having the funds to cover the cost 
of the project, and also asked if NCRA allowed for a contingency in the original project 
documents. 
 
Legal Counsel Neary said acceptance of a bid has to be within the funding of the Capital Project, 
and added that NCRA has access to the funds necessary to complete the project.  He pointed out 
that NCRA is not issuing a Notice to Proceed for the 8 Northernmost crossings until the necessary 
funding is allocated by the CTC in January. 
 
Mr. Anderson said that NCRA included a 15% contingency in the 2005 Capital Assessment 
Report.  He said that amount has been exceeded due to general escalation of costs, and also 
because the signal vendors have raised their costs. 
 
Director Meyers asked if Mass Electric has been made aware of the funding shortfall and if they 
have agreed to accept a limited Notice to Proceed.  He also suggested that if Mass Electric is in 
agreement, the contract should stipulate the reduction of costs for testing and permits.  He also 
asked if Legal Counsel Neary approves and signs bid documents.  Mr. Anderson said that NCRA 
has talked to Mass Electric and reported that they are in agreement.  
 
Legal Counsel Neary said that he signs the contracts, not the bid documents.  
 
Legal Counsel Neary pointed out that the City of Novato has submitted a letter protesting any 
action regarding Signal Package # 2.  The aforementioned letter from the City of  Novato is 
hereby made part of these minutes by reference. 
 

 Upon motion by Director Woolley, seconded by Director Simonson, and carried unanimously by 
 roll (6-0, Colfax, Kelley, Ziedrich absent), the Board approved the Award of Contract to Mass 
 Electric Construction Company for  Railroad Grade Crossing Warning System Repair and 
 Replacement Contract # 2. 

 



 5

 
2. Consideration and Possible Action Regarding Issuance of  Notice to Proceed   

  (NTP)  to Mass Electric Construction Company for Railroad Grade Crossing  

  Warning System Repair and Replacement Contract # 2. 

 

Upon Motion by Director Simonson, seconded by Director Woolley, a Limited Notice to Proceed 
was issued to Mass Electric Construction Company for Railroad Grade Crossing Warning System 
Repair and Replacement Contract # 2, carried unanimously by roll (6-0 Colfax, Kelley, Ziedrich 
absent). 

 

 

 3. Consideration and Possible Action Regarding NCRA Committee Assignments. 

 

Executive Director Stogner said that with the resignation of Director Leland and Director Arnold 
and the subsequent assignment of two new Directors, MacDonald and Meyers, the Board should 
appoint the new Directors to Committees, and made the following recommendation: 
 

Property Committee - Standing 
  

Chair Kelley 

Member  Simonson 

Member  Ziedrich 

Member  MacDonald 

  

Finance Committee - Standing 
  

Chair Colfax 

Member  Meyers 

Member  Ollivier 

Member  Ziedrich 

  

Policies and Procedures – Standing 
  

Chair Woolley 

Member  Hemphill 

Member  MacDonald  

Member  Meyers 

  

Operator Committee – Standing 
  

Chair Hemphill 

Member  Kelley 

Member  Simonson 

Member  Colfax 

  

Port/Rail Committee – Ad Hoc 
  

Chair Woolley 

Member  Ollivier 

 



 6

Director Meyers said that he would like to be assigned to the Operator Committee and also the 
Property Committee.  
 
Director MacDonald said that he would like to be assigned to the Finance Committee rather than 
the Property Committee. 
 
Legal Counsel Neary said that the current action is simply to fill the committee vacancies created 
by resignation of Jim Leland and Judy Arnold.  He said that the future Board Action could adjust 
committee assignments as desired by the Board. 
 
Motion to approve staff recommendation to fill Committee vacancies made by Director Woolley, 
seconded by Director Simonson, carried unanimously by roll (6-0, Kelley, Colfax, Ziedrich 
absent). 

 
 H. STAFF REPORTS 
 
 1. Executive Director – Mitch Stogner 

 
 No Report 
 
2. Legal Counsel - Chris Neary 
 

Director Meyers asked Legal Counsel Neary if he and Director MacDonald were fully 
accredited NCRA Board members. 
 
Legal Counsel Neary said that although NCRA does not agree with the process by which 
the County of Marin appoints Directors, NCRA has accepted Director Meyers and 
Director MacDonald as duly appointed members of the NCRA Board of Directors. 

 

3. Project Managers Report – Dave Anderson 
 
 No Report 
 
 

I.  OPERATORS REPORT 
 
 1.   John Williams – NWP Co. 
 
  No Report 
 
 The Board convened into Closed Session at 3:15 p.m. 
 
J. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 1.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION (1 case) 
      Government Code 54656.9(a) 
              (1)     City of Novato vs. NCRA; Superior Court of California, County of Marin; case # CV07464 
 
K.  ANNOUNCEMENT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 

 
 The Board reconvened into Open Session at 4:00 p.m.   



 7

 
Legal Counsel Neary reported that the Board met with Counsel, received information and gave 
direction on one item of Existing Litigation City of Novato vs. NCRA. 

 
L.    ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 November 2, 2007 
 3:00 p.m. 
 Policies and Procedures Committee Meeting 
 Teleconference – Various Locations 
   
 

M.     ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Chairman Hemphill adjourned the meeting at 4:02 p.m. 

     


